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thNOTICE is hereby given that the 29 Annual General Meeting of the Members of TAVERNIER RESOURCES 

LIMITED (the “Company”) will be held on Friday, September 08, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered 

Office of the Company, Plot No- 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind Estate, 

Govandi, Mumbai – 400 043.The following business will be transacted at the Meeting:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit  
st and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended 31  March, 2023 together with the Reports of 

 the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To consider re-appointment of Mrs. Aditi Aditya Dugar (DIN: 02300703) as Director, who retires by rotation 

 and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To re-appoint Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta as Managing Director of the Company and in this regard, to

 pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Special Resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196 and 203 and all other applicable 

 provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

 Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being

 in force), consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Milapchand

 Naheta (DIN: 00297863) as  Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f. March 02,

 2024. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT at the request of Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta, that he will not draw any

 remuneration during his tenure as Managing Director, he is being appointed as Managing Director without 

 any remuneration and on terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory statement annexed to this Notice.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all

 acts, deeds, matters and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

 Resolution.”

4. To re-appoint Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre (DIN: 08279385) as an Independent Non-Executive

 Director of the Company and in this regard, to pass, with or without modifications, the following 

 resolution as a Special Resolution:-

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Companies (Appointment and 

 Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules

 made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 

 read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, and Securities Exchange And Board of India (Listing 

 Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the approval of the Members/Shareholders of
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 the Company be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre (DIN: 

 08279385) as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a second term of 5 (five) 

 consecutive years effective from February 12, 2024, in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in

 writing from a Member, in terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the

 office of Director, not liable to retire by rotation. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to take such steps and do

 all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper and expedient to give effect

 to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Tavernier Resources Limited

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Date:   11/08/2023              � � � �                             Chairman & Managing Director

                           DIN: 00297863
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Notes:

 1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its circular dated December 28, 2022 read together with

  circulars dated May 05, 2022, January 13, 2021, April 8, 2020, April13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 (collectively 

  referred to as “MCA Circulars”),permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) 

  through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”),without physical presence of the

  members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 

  2013 (”the Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

  Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held 

  through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

 2. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and

  vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is 

  being held through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the

  facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy

  Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

3. Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed

  hereto.

4. Details of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking re-appointment at this Meeting are provided in the 

 “Annexure” to the Notice.

5. M embers attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum

 under Section 103 of the Act.

6. Corporate  members  intending  to  send  their authorized representative(s) to attend the AGM pursuant to  

  Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution

  authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. The said Resolution / 

 Authorization shall be sent to the Company Secretary or authorised representative of the Company at e-mail 

  ID  and kmsawant5@gmail.com.tavernier.resources@gmail.com

7. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021 read with Circular dated

  May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic

 mode to those Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company/ Depository Participants.

  Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company's 

  website , websites of the Stock Exchange, that is, BSE Limited at h�p://www.tavernier.com/      

www.bseindia.com.

8. The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

  Number (PAN) for participating in the securities market, deletion of name of deceased holder, 

 transmission/transposition of shares. Members are requested to submit the PAN details to their Depository

  Participant in case of holdings in dematerialized form and to the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents,

  mentioning your correct reference folio number in case of holdings in physical form.

9. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the Company are 

 requested to address their communications to the Company at least 7 days before the date of the meeting. 

 The same will be suitably replied by the Company.

10. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company is

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
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leased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right to vote by electronic means. The Members, 

whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Friday, September 01, 

2023 are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

11. The facility for voting through electronic voting system be made available at the AGM and the members

 attending the AGM through VC/OAVM, who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting, may 

 exercise their right to vote at the AGM through E-Voting. 

12. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to  

  send to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, the details of such folios together with the 

 share certificates along with the requisite KYC documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. 

 Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form.

13. Members who still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to dematerialise their shareholding to

  avail the benefits of dematerialization which include easy liquidity, since trading is permitted in 

 dematerialised form only, electronic transfer, savings in stamp duty and elimination of any possibility of loss

  of documents and bad deliveries. 

14. M      embers can avail of the nomination facility by filing Form SH-13, as prescribed under Section 72 of the 

 Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, with

  the Company. Blank forms will be supplied on request

PROCESS AND MANNER FOR ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET:

15.  Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in & Click on “Login”.

  ▶Select the “Company” and 'Event Date' and register with your following details: - 

 A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 

  Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit

  Beneficiary ID

  Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID

  followed by 8 Digit Client ID

  Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered

   with the Company 

 B.      PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their 

  PAN with the Depository Participant (DP) / Company shall use the sequence number provided to you,

  if applicable. 

 

 C.  Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

 D. E mail ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

▶ Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the 
meeting).

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS / MEMBERS TO SPEAK DURING THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING THROUGH  INSTAMEET:

 1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in
  advance with the company on tavernier.resources@gmail.com.

 2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the
  client. 

 3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

 4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

 5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by switching on
  video mode and audio of your device.

 Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting / management will announce the
 name and serial number for speaking. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS / MEMBERS TO VOTE DURING THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING THROUGH  INSTAMEET:

 16. Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, 

 shareholders/ members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the

 vote as under:

 1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

 2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered 

  mobile number / registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on

  'Submit'. 

 3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option

  “Favour / Against” for voting. 

 4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour / Against” as desired. Enter the

  number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 

  'Favour / Against'.

 5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour / Against as desired and you have decided

  to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,

  click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your 

  vote. 

 6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change 

  your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders / Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders / Members who have voted 
through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend / participate in the Annual 
General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

Shareholders / Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets / Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience.

Shareholders / Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
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Type of 
shareholders

Login Method

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-

Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login"" which is 

available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID 

and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to 

“InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is 

available under 'Shareholder / Member' section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Please note that Shareholders / Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is 
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders / members have any queries regarding login / e-voting, they may send an email to 
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS POST CHANGE IN THE LOGIN MECHANISM 
FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE, PURSUANT TO SEBI 
CIRCULAR DATED DECEMBER 9, 2020:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can 
register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their 
demat accounts.

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 5, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. and will end on Thursday, 
September 7, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by LINK INTIME for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record 
date (cut-off date) i.e., September 1, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders 
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being September 1, 2023.

https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and 

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authent icat ion. The URL for users to login to Easi /  Easiest are  

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login www.cdslindia.comor  and click on 

New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. 

The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on 

LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 

account number and PAN No. from a link in  home page. The www.cdslindia.com

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 

provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and 

you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period.

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

& login 

through their 

depository 

participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, 

you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-

Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. 

LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period.

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Physical 

mode & 

evoting 

service 

Provider is 

LINKINTIME.

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off 

date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

 1. O p e n    t h e    i n t e r n e t    b r o w s e r    a n d    l a u n c h    t h e    

  URL:https://instavote.linkintime/.co.in

 2. Click on “Sign Up” under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your 

  following details: - 

 A. User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No

 + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who

 have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP) / Company shall 

 use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

 C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As

 recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

 D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as

 recorded with your DP / Company. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://www.cdslindia.com/
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  Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' 

  and 'D', shall provide their Folio number in 'D' above 

   *Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide 'D' above 

      Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8▶

  characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at 

  least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

      Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). ▶

 3. Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab. 
 4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and
  click on 'Submit'. 

Cast your vote electronically:

 1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select
  'View' icon. 
 2. E-voting page will appear. 
 3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired
  option 'Favour / Against' (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click
  on the 'View Resolution' file link). 

After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on 'Submit'. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your 

vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the 

e-voting system of LIIPL at  and register themselves as 'Custodian / Mutual https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Fund / Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution 

/authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised 

representative(s) in PDF format in the 'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to 

verify the same. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a 

request at  or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.enotices@linkintime.co.in

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

▶

▶

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
mailto:enotices@linkintime.co.in
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 
at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password: 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or 

Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website 

of Link Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

o Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click 'forgot password?' 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 

particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as 

mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character 

(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + 

Folio Number registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the 

password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants' website.

Ø It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. 

Ø For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Ø During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 

resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
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EXPLANATORYSTATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”):

Item No. 3

Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta was appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) years 

w.e.f. March 03, 2009 and was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a further  term of 5 (Five) 

years w.e.f. March 02, 2019 on the terms and conditions as approved by the Members of the Company.

The Board, vide its Resolution dated August 27, 2018, had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Milapchand 

Naheta as Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 5 years with effect from March 02, 2019 and the 

same was ratified by the Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2018. The 

said term would expire on March 01, 2024.

Since the term of Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta as Managing Director of the Company will expire on March 01, 

2024, the Board of Directors of the Company has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee at its Meeting held on August 11, 2023 has approved re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir 

Milapchand Naheta as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f. March 02, 2024 in 

accordance with Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

It is proposed to seek Members approval for  re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta as Managing Director 

of the Company for a further period of 5 years with effect from March 02, 2024, in terms of the applicable provisions of 

the Act. Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta will be turning 70 in 2 years, which is why the company is considering passing 

the Special Resolution for his reappointment as Managing Director.

Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. The other relatives of 

Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta may be deemed to be interested in the said resolution of the Notice, to the extent of 

their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors/Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in anyway concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the resolution. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of Members of the 

Company.

Item No. 4

thThe Members in the  Annual general Meeting held on 9  August, 2019 appointed Mr. Aditya Mhatre (DIN: 08279385) 
thas an Independent Non- Executive Director to hold office for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 12  February, 2019. Accordingly, 

ththe tenure of Mr. Aditya Mhatre, as an Independent Director will expire on 11  February, 2024.

In terms of provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 

the Company shall recommend to the Board of the Directors, the appointment/ reappointment of a Director. In terms 

of provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold office for a term up to 

five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment on passing of a special 

resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

The Company has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member signifying his 

intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Aditya Mhatre for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Aditya Mhatre that he meets the criteria of independence as 
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prescribed under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also under Securities Exchange and Board of 

India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the stock exchanges. Further, he 

has also confirmed that he is not disqualified from being appointed as Director under Section 164 of the said Act and 

has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company. After taking into account the performance evaluation, 

during his first term of five years and considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in respective 

fields and the substantial contribution made by Mr. Aditya Mhatre during his tenure as an Independent Director since 

his appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on August 11, 2023 has 

considered, approved and recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Aditya Mhatre as an Independent Director for a 

second term of five years with effect from February 12, 2024, to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board 

of Directors at its meeting held on August 11, 2023 has approved the proposal for reappointment of Mr. Aditya Mhatre 

as an Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from February 12, 2024.

His brief resume, the nature of his expertise in specific areas, names of companies in which he hold directorship, 

committee memberships/ chairmanships, his shareholding etc., are separately annexed hereto. 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution for your approval. 

He is not related to any of the directors or key managerial personnel (including relatives of the directors and key 

managerial personnel) of the Company in terms of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of the directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel) other than Mr. Aditya Mhatre himself is in any way concerned or interested, in the Resolution 

set out under Item No. 4.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Tavernier Resources Limited

Place: Mumbai� � � � � � � �       Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Date: 11/08/2023                                         Chairman & Managing Director

   DIN: 00297863

Registered Of fice:

Plot No- 42 Cts No 1(PT), Village Deonar, 

Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind .

Estate, Govandi, Mumbai – 400 043
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“Annexure”

Information Required Under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-II) issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India in respect of the Directors retiring by rotation and being eligible, seeking re-appointment 

is as under:

Name of the Director

Director Identification Number

Date of Birth

Date of appointment

Qualifications

Expertise in Specific 

Functional Area

Directorship held in other 

companies (As on 
st31  March, 2023)

Chairmanships/Memberships

of the Committees of the 

Board of Directors of other
stcompanies (As on 31  

March, 2023)

Shareholding of Directors 
st(As on 31  March, 2023)

Relationship between 

Directors inter-se

Aditi Aditya Dugar

02300703

13/04/1983

30/10/2008

M.Com in CFA Grade II

She has worked in 
financial markets, stock 
exchange, investment 
banking firm for private 
placements, debt market 
doing commissioning 
and brokerage, part of 
the team managing Debt 
book of the company.

1. Urban Gourmet India 
Private Limited
2. Urban Foodsol 
Private Limited
3. Austra Hospitality 
Private Limited
4. Sage And Saffron 
Hospitality Private Limited
5. Future Traditions 
Private Limited

None

None

Related to Mr. Sudhir 
Milapchand Naheta and 
Ms.Rajkumari Sudhir 
Naheta (Mrs. Aditi Aditya 
Dugar is the daughter of 
Mr. Sudhir Milapchand 
Naheta and Mrs. 
Rajkumari Sudhir Naheta).

Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

08279385

05/10/1986

12/02/2019

MBA, Finance

He is been working in 

the Hospitality Industry 

handling Accounts & 

Finance 

None

None

None

NA

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

00297863

29/05/1955

30/10/2008

Bachelor of Comm. (B.COM)

Gems & Jewellery

1.  Artisan Grown 

Organics Private Limited

2.  Tavernier Trading 

Private Limited

3. Zama Impact 

Foundation

None

33,15,916 fully paid-up 

equity shares @ 

Rs. 10/- each.

Related to Ms. Aditi Dugar 
and Ms. Rajkumari Sudhir
Naheta (Mrs. Aditi Aditya
Dugar is a daughter of Mr. 
Sudhir Milapchand Naheta 
and Mrs. Rajkumari Sudhir 
Naheta is a Wife of Mr. 
Sudhir Naheta).
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Name

Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Shailesh Mavji Vora

Designation 

Chairperson

Member

Member

Name

Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Shailesh Mavji Vora

Designation 

Chairperson

Member

Member
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Name

Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Shailesh Mavji Vora

Designation 

Chairperson

Member

Member

Name

Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Shailesh Mavji Vora

Designation 

Chairperson

Member

Member
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Annexure I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Overview

This Management Discussion & Analysis Report presents the key performance highlights of the year 2022-23 

pertaining to the Company's business. The Report has been prepared in compliance with the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This review should 

be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statement, the schedules and notes thereto and other information 

included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The Company's financial statement has been prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).The Management accepts responsibility for the 

integrity and objectivity of the Financial Statements. However, investors and readers are cautioned that this 

discussion contains certain forward-looking Statements that involve risks and uncertainties. 

The Pandemic has left everyone affected globally one way or the other.  It has caused huge disruptions in terms of 

economic activity as well as the loss of human lives. Nationwide shutdowns, economic slowdown have impacted 

various industries. Gems & jewellery is one of those many industries that have suffered majorly due to it as domestic 

demand and exports sharply crashed. One wave after the other is not letting this industry recover properly.

Industry Structure and Developments

Indian Economy

For FY 2022-23, the overall gem & jewellery exports grew 2.48% to Rs. 3,00,462.52 crores as compared Rs. 

2,93,193.19 crores for the same period previous year. In terms of US dollars, the overall gem & jewellery exports 

accounted for $37,468.66 million as compared to $39,331.71 million for the same period last year.

For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, the overall gross exports of Cut & Polished diamonds at Rs. 1,76,696.95 

crores (US$ 22044.58 million) declined 2.97% (declined 9.78% in terms of US dollar) compared to the same period in 

the previous year which was Rs. 1,82,111.14 crores ($24,433.75 million).

The Government has permitted 100% FDI in the sector under the automatic route, wherein the foreign investor or the 

Indian company do not require any prior approval from the Reserve Bank or Government of India.

For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, provisional gross export of total Gold Jewellery at Rs. 75,635.72 crores 

($9,423.31 million) grew 11.13% (3.22% in terms of US dollars) over the comparative figure of Rs. 68,062.41 crores    

($ 9,129.71 million) for previous year.

For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, provisional gross export of Plain Gold Jewellery at Rs. 33,177.86 crores 

($4,128.57 million) grew 17.22% (8.74% in terms of US dollars) over the comparative figure of Rs. 28,303.37 crores 

($3796.70 million) for previous year.

   

For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, provisional gross export of all kinds of Studded Gold jewellery at Rs. 

42,457.87 crores ($5,294.74 million) grew 6.79% (declined 0.72% in terms of US dollars) over the comparative figure 

of Rs. 39,759.04 crores ($5,333.01 million) for previous year.
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For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, provisional gross export of Polished Lab Grown Diamonds at Rs. 13,466.42 

crores ($1,679.98 million) grew 37.31% (27.85% in terms of US dollars) over the comparative figure of Rs. 9,807.56 

crores ($1,313.98 million) for the previous year.

For the period of April 2022 – March 2023, provisional gross export of Coloured Gemstones at Rs. 3,373.43 crores 

($419.63 million) grew 45.44% (34.83% in terms of US dollars) over the comparative figure of Rs. 2319.41 crores 

(US$ 311.21 million) for previous year.

Gems and Jewellery

The measures taken by the government to support the gems and jewellery sector include a reduction in import duty on 

cut and polished diamonds from 7 per cent to 5 per cent and an extension of Emergency Credit Line Guarantee 

Scheme (ECLGS) for MSMEs up to March 2023. Over 90 per cent of units in the gems and jewellery (G&J) sector are 

MSMEs.

Acceptance of personal surety bonds in place of bank guarantee for import of gold, replacement of SEZ Act with a new 

SEZ regime, and simplified regulatory framework for e-commerce in the next few months will facilitate G&J exports 

through e-commerce, ensuring that small retailers are able to ship their products overseas are other important 

measures taken to support gems and jewellery sector.

Opportunities and Threats

In the coming years, growth in Gems and Jewellery sector would be largely contributed by the development of large 

retailers/brands. Also, the relaxation of restrictions of gold import is likely to provide a fillip to the industry.

Based on its potential for growth and value addition, the Government declared gems and jewellery sector as a focus 

area for export promotion. The Government has undertaken various measures recently to promote investment and 

upgrade technology and skills to promote 'Brand India' in the international market. The Government has permitted 

100% FDI in the sector under the automatic route, wherein the foreign investor or the Indian company do not require 

any prior approval from the Reserve Bank or Government of India.

In Union Budget 2022-23, the finance minister also proposed a cut in import duty on seeds used to make lab-grown 

diamonds with a view to boosting domestic manufacturing. Gem and Jewellery export Promotion Council (GJEPC)  

chairman Vipul Shah lauded the government for its recommendations to promote indigenous manufacturing in the 

emerging Lab-Grown Diamond (LGD) sector by providing Research Grants to IIT for 5 years.

The Gems and Jewellery Export Promotion Council (GJEPC) has very high expectations from the Union Budget 2023-

24. It feels that if their demands are met it will boost the industry and create more employment. The GJEPC regional 

chairman Vijay Manguki told IANS that the council has submitted a memorandum to the Union Finance Ministry 

demanding reduction in import duty on cut and polished diamonds; the present duty is 5 per cent, it needs to be 

brought down to 2.5 %. The same benefit should be extended to polished gemstones also.

The demand for jewellery is expected to be significantly supported by the recent positive developments in the industry.

The jewellery sector in the country continues to remain poised for growth on account of its demographics as well as 

increasing urbanisation and income levels. The demand for jewellery is also expanding beyond the traditional 
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marriage functions to a life style and fashion accessory as well. However, at the same time the traditional demand for 

jewellery continues to remain strong. The sector is witnessing changes in customer preferences due to adoption of 

western lifestyle and their demand for new designs and varieties in jewellery. Further, rising quality awareness of 

customers has also provided a fillip to the organized retail segment, which is banking on its 'reliability' and 'quality' to 

compete against the highly fragmented unorganized jewellers.

Demand for gems and jewellery in India is predominantly concentrated in the southern region. South India gems and 

jewellery market is likely to register growth over the course of next five years, primarily owing to the presence of a large 

number of market players and aggressive marketing strategies adopted by companies. Moreover, increasing brand 

consciousness along with rising middle-class population in the region is expected to aid the region's gems & jewellery 

market.

Gems and jewellery sector is facing various problems such as dependence on imports, changing fashion, imbalance 

growth of products, manual way of crafting, various problems regarding labourers, financial problems, procedural 

hardships and unemployment etc.

The sector is witnessing changes in customer preferences due to adoption of western lifestyle and their demand for 

new designs and varieties in jewellery. Further, rising quality awareness of customers has also provided a fillip to the 

organized retail segment, which is banking on its 'reliability' and 'quality' to compete against the highly fragmented 

unorganized jewellers.

Competition which has always been a challenge is countered by better quality and designs, branding, catering to 

changing customer demands/styles and cost control measures. Increasing prices of raw materials have affected and 

can affect the profit margins.

Performance

The Company operates into one segment only i.e Gems and Jewellery and has generated net sales of Rs. 337.19 

Lakhs.

Outlook

In the coming years, there will be a spurt in demand for Indian jewellery in the global market and the growth in the gems 

& Jewellery sector would be largely contributed by the development of large Manufacturers/brands due to the ongoing 

structural changes together with strong macro-demographic trends. Regulatory changes introduced by the 

Government of India over the last few years are likely to rise the preference for branded jewellery and shift the scales in 

favour of the organized sector at the cost of the unorganized sector. The demand for jewellery is expected to remain 

robust, given Indian demographics and the consumers affinity towards gold for both wedding-related purchases and 

as store of value. Overall, India is expected to play a more important role in the global gems & jewellery sector, with 

significant investment seen in the manufacturing units by the domestic players, foreign players, and private equity 

investors.

The changes expected in the product-mix portfolio of the Company auger well in the long run to improve the profits. It is 

expected that the positive impact of polarization on the organized sector is likely to be visible operationally within a 

couple of years that would go a long way in improving the margin and turnover for the industry in general and the 

Company.
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Plans to Modify/ Enhance the product Offering: The Management is focusing to bring state of the art design portfolio to 

buyers and enhancing the product offering to the customers, hence new product innovation is one of the integral plans 

of the company.

Risks and Concerns

The nature of the Company's business exposes it to several inherent risks and concerns. The Company strives to 

closely monitor the risks and to mitigate them by adopting suitable, pragmatic strategies. 

a) Bullion Risk: The volatility in the gold prices exposes the Company to bullion risk as gold forms approximately 30% 

to 50% of the cost of the finished product. 

b) Raw Material Supplies Risk: Though India plays a dominant role in the Gems & Jewellery industry in terms of 

processing and consumption, mining of gold and diamond is amongst the lowest in the world. India imports gold and 

rough diamonds along with other precious metals. 

c) Geography Risk: Dependence on any geographic location makes the Company's business in that region vulnerable 

to the economic slowdown therein. While USA continues to be our prime export destination.

Business risks exist for any enterprise having national and international exposure. Tavernier Resources Limited also 

faces certain risks, the key ones being - a longer than anticipated delay in economic revival, decreased sales volume, 

competition, unfavorable exchange rate fluctuations, emergence of inflationary conditions, unexpected changes in 

regulatory framework and the overall economic climate and government regulations. The Company is well aware of 

these risks and challenges and has put in place mechanisms to ensure that they are managed and mitigated with 

adequate timely actions. As the Company is dealing in very high-value goods/items, it is always exposed to  

operational risks. The Company, therefore, always ensures that its entire inventory, from raw materials to finished 

goods is insured at all times, at the manufacturing facilities. 

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The company has set up an internal control system that functions at various levels of the organization. The system 

ensures compliance with the respective laws & regulations, efficiency of operations, optimum utilization of resources, 

disclosure and adequate reporting of financial transactions, proper administration at all levels of the organization.

Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance

During the financial year 2022-23 under review, the Net Sales of diamonds/precious stones decreased from Rs. 

446.85 Lakhs in F.Y. 2021-22 to Rs. 337.19 Lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23, whereas the Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 

11.77 Lakhs as against profit of Rs.10.93 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

Changes in Key Financial Ratios

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Change %Particulars
Sr.
No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

Inventory Turnover (Days)

Debtors Turnover (Days)

Current Ratio

Interest Coverage Ratio

-

-

1.40

0.63

-

-

1.03

1.36

0%

0%

37%

-74%
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March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Change %Particulars
Sr.
No.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Debt Equity

Net Debt Equity

EBITDA Margin

Net Profit Margin

Return on average Net worth

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Long term Debt to Working Capital Ratio

Bad Debt to Account Receivable Ratio

Current Liability Ratio 

Total debt to Total Assets Ratio

0.57

0.57

(0.03)

(0.03)

(0.02)

0.61

3.98

-

0.04

0.35

0.53

0.53

0.03

0.02

0.02

1.38

4.07

-

0.04

0.32

4%

4%

-6%

-6%

-4%

-0.77%

-9%

0%

0%

3%

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people 
employed.

The Company considers its human resources as amongst its most valuable assets and continues to place emphasis 

on their development. It has been Company's constant endeavour to impart requisite training and thereby develop 

and hone the skills and talent of its personnel and enable them to realize their potential.

The overall Industrial Relations in the Company have been quite peaceful and cordial.

Cautionary statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing Company's objective, projections, estimates and 

expectations may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to 

the Company's operations include, among others, economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions 

in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in Government regulations, tax laws, 

statutes and other incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Tavernier Resources Limited

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11/08/2023

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta
Chairman & Managing Director

         DIN: 00297863



29

1. PREFACE:

 Tavernier Resources Limited (hereinafter called and referred to as “the Company”) believes in conducting its
 affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standard of professionalism and good Corporate
 Governance Practices. The Company is committed to ensure that equitable remuneration is paid to all 
 directors and employees of the Company. In order to attract and retain properly qualified and skilled directors
 and executives, to fill vacancies at all levels, it is the Company's aim to maintain fair and competitive 
 remuneration consistent with industry practices and all necessary regulations.

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“the Policy”) has been framed in accordance with the provisions of the
 Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
 Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The Company had constituted a Remuneration Committee (“Committee”)
 way back. The Company had already adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy as required under the
 provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same has been replaced with this new Policy with effect from
 April 1, 2019.

2. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES:

 This policy is intended to ensure that:

 i. All Directors and Executives of the Company are recognized and rewarded for their performance in a

  fair and equitable manner;

 ii. To ensure that remuneration paid to Directors and Executives is competitive, enabling the Company

  to attract and retain employees capable of meeting the Company's needs and service delivery 

  obligations; and 

 iii. To reward Directors and Executives for achieving pre-determined Company, Departmental as well as

  personal/individual performance targets and goals.

3. APPLICATION OF THIS POLICY:

 Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Employees as may be decided by the Committee or 
 Board of the Company, subject to the approval of members in the General Meeting for their appointment 
 wherever applicable and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be remunerated in line 
 with the service agreement.

4. DEFINITIONS:

 Directors which includes Whole Time or Executive Directors, and Non-Executive or Independent Directors.

 “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company as constituted from time to time.

 “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Act and the SEBI (Listing 
 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.
 
 “Key Managerial Personnel/KMP”means “Key Managerial Personnel” as defined in Section 2(51) of the
 Act.

 “Senior Management” means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core
 management team. The core management team includes Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, 
 Whole-time Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

Annexure II
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 “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the Company, 
 constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
 Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 Words and expressions used and not defined in this Policy, but defined in the Act or any rules framed under 
 the Act or the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and Rules and Regulations framed 
 thereunder or in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or the 
 Accounting Standards shall have the meanings assigned to them in these regulations.

5. GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT:

 The role of the Committee shall, inter-alia, include the following:

 1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

  director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 

  managerial personnel and other employees;

 2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

 3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

 4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

  management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 

  appointment and removal. 

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that –

 (a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

 directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

 (b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

 benchmarks; and

 (c) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance

 between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate 

 to the working of the company and its goals.

6. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) AND 

 SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

6.1  Appointment criteria and qualification

 i. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the

 person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the 

 Board his/her appointment on the basis of criteria laid down from time to time.

 ii. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is

 considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise

 and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the concerned position.

 iii. Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to compliance of provisions of section 149 of the 

 Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and rules there under.
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 iv. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director, 

 Whole-time Director and Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term

 of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 

 approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement 

 annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond

 seventy years.

6.2  Term/ Tenure of Appointment

 a)  Managing Director/Whole Time Director/Manager

  The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Chairman & Managing Director, or 
  Executive Director or Whole Time Director or Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time.
  No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

 b)   Independent Director

     An Independent Director shall hold office for such term which should not exceed a maximum of five 
  consecutive years on the Board of the Company, as may be recommended by the Committee and
  approved by the Board and shareholders and will be eligible for reappointment on passing of a 
  special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

  No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
  Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
  Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three
  years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
  indirectly.

  A person shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies, provided
  that any person who is serving as a whole time Director in any listed Company shall serve as an 
  Independent Director in not more than three listed Companies.

  The maximum tenure of Independent Directors shall be in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013
  and rules made thereunder, in this regard, from time to time.

6.3  Evaluation

 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director. The Committee shall identify

 evaluation criteria which will evaluate Directors based on knowledge to perform the role, time and level of 

 participation, performance of duties, level of oversight, professional conduct and independence. The 

 appointment/re-appointment/continuation of Independent Directors on the Board shall be subject to the

 outcome of the yearly evaluation process.

6.4  Removal

 Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made there 

 under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the 

 Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior 

 Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

6.5  Retirement

 The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Staff shall retire as per the applicable 

 provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per provisions of the Articles of Association of the 

 Company. The Committee may recommend to the Board for retention of any Director, Key Managerial 

 Personnel, Senior Management in the same position/remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the 

 retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.
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7. PROVISIONS REGARDING PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION, PERQUISITES TO THE MANAGING 

 DIRECTOR/WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS/MANAGER, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) AND

 SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

 

 (a) General Provisions

 i. The remuneration/perquisites/commission etc. to the Managing Director/Whole-time

  Directors/Manager, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee

  and recommended to the Board for approval.

 ii. The remuneration/perquisite/commission etc. shall be in accordance with the percentage/slabs /

  conditions laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 and shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the

  shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

 iii. Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure may be recommended by the 

  Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 

  Managing Director/ Whole Time Director/Manager. The decision of the Committee as to increment 

  shall be final.

 iv. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time

  Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any

  other employees for indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of a deed for which they

  may be held guilty in relation to the Company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be 

  treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is 

  proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

 (b) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors / Manager, Key Managerial

  Personnel (“KMP”) and Senior Management Personnel

  Remuneration

  The Managing Director/ Whole-time Director/Manager shall be eligible for remuneration as may be

  approved by the Shareholders of the Company on the recommendation of the Committee and the 

  Board of Directors. The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus/commission and quantum of

  perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees

  etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall

  be within the overall remuneration approved by the Shareholders and Central Government, 

  wherever required.

  Minimum Remuneration

  If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 

  pay remuneration to its Managing Director / Whole-time Director/Manager in accordance with the 

  provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, then with

  the previous approval of the Central Government.

  Provisions for Excess Remuneration

  If Managing Director/ Whole-time Director/Manager draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of

  remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or

  without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such

  sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company
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  shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.

 (c) Remuneration to Non Whole Time Directors (Including Independent Directors) Sitting Fees:

  The Non Whole Time Directors (Including Independent Directors) of the Company shall be paid

  remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending Meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for

  any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board. The amount of sitting fees shall not 

  exceed the amount prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

  Profit Linked Commission

  The Non-executive/Independent Directors of the Company may be paid profit-linked Commission 

  within the monetary limit as may be recommended by the Board of Directors from time to time and 

  also approved by the Shareholders of the Company and by the Central Government, wherever 

  required.

  Stock Options

  Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option

  of the Company.

8. AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY:

 The Board of Directors on its own and/or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 

 Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

 In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant Statutory authorities, not 

 being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), 

 circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly 

 from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tavernier Resources Limited

Place: Mumbai

Date: 11/08/2023

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00297863
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Annexure III

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

To,

The Members,

Tavernier Resources Limited

Plot No- 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, 

Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind Estate, 

Govandi Mumbai - 400043.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Tavernier Resources Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, 

in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company as given in Annexure A, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of

 Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not 

 Applicable to the Company during the period under Audit);

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,

 1992 ('SEBI Act')are as follows: -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

 Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

 Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable as the Company has not made any further issue of shares 

 during the period under Audit);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock

 Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share

 Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period

 under Audit);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under Audit as the Company has not issued

 any debt securities);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

 Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not

 Applicable as the Company has not delisted or proposed to delist its Equity Shares from 

 Stock Exchange during the financial year under review); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 

 Applicable to the Company during the period under Audit as the Company has not bought 

 back or proposed to buy back any of its securities during the financial year under review).

I have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses / Regulations of the following:

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions

 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(j) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing 

 Agreements entered into by the Company with stock exchange.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations to the Company. 

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the year under review are carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda are 
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sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of 
the Minutes.

Based on the representations given by the Officers of the Company and the information provided to me regarding the 
compliance system followed by the Company, I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Based on the representations from the Company and its officers, we further report that, during the audit period, there 
were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., 
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure - B” and forms an integral part of 
this report.

Place: Thane
Date: 11/08/2023

For Sonal Kothari & Associates

� Sonal Shah
� Proprietor

ACS: 24216
COP No.: 8769

  Peer Review Certificate no. 2069/2022
UDIN: A024216E000765561 
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ANNEXURE A

List of documents verified

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

2. Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

3. Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee held during the financial year under report.

4. Minutes of Annual General Meeting held during the financial year under report.

5. Statutory Registers.

6. Notice and Agenda submitted to all the Directors / Members for the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.

7. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 184 of the 

 Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereto during the Financial Year under Report.

8. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

 attachments thereof during the financial year under report.

9. Intimations / documents / reports / returns filed with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the provisions of Listing

 Agreement & Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

 Regulations, 2015 during the financial year under report.

10. Intimations received from directors under The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

 Trading) Regulations, 1992.

11. Closure of Register of Members.

Place: Thane
Date: 11/08/2023
� � � � � � �                    For Sonal Kothari & Associates

� Sonal Shah
� Proprietor

ACS: 24216
COP No.: 8769

UDIN: A024216E000765561  
Peer Review Certificate no. 2069/2022
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ANNEXURE B

To, 

The Members, 

Tavernier Resources Limited 

Plot No- 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, 

Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind Estate, 

Govandi Mumbai - 400043.

My report of even date is to read along with this letter. 

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2) I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I have 
followed provided a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis. 

6) The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Thane
Date: 11/08/2023 � � � �

For Sonal Kothari & Associates

� Sonal Shah
� Proprietor

ACS: 24216
COP No.: 8769

UDIN: A024216E000765561  
     Peer Review Certificate no. 2069/2022
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   Annexure IV

[Pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(A) Conservation of energy:

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(B) Technology absorption:

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof; and

Not Applicable

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year 

and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows:

The Company had no Foreign 
Exchange earnings/outgo during 
the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Tavernier Resources Limited

 Sudhir Milapchand Naheta  
     Chairman & Managing Director
                                DIN: 00297863

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11/08/2023
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Not Applicable, as no remuneration is paid to Directors of 

the Company.

No remuneration is paid to Directors.

However, during the financial year under review, there was 14.93% 

increment in the remuneration of Chief Financial Officer and 

24.14% increment in the remuneration of Company Secretary.

25.00%

From April 01,2022 to November 17, 2022: 3

From November 18,2022 to December 26, 2022: 3

From December 27, 2022 to March 31,2023: 3

During the financial year under review:

(a) The average annual increase in the salaries of employees 

was 25.00%

(b) The average annual increase in the remuneration of 

Managerial personnel was 17.71%

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration 

policy of the Company.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Average percentile increase 
already made in the salaries of 
employees other  than the 
managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in 
the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out 
if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration

The ratio of the remuneration 

of each director to the median 

remuneration of the employees 

o f  the  company  fo r  the 

financial year

The percentage increase in 

remuneration of each director, 

Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company 

Secretary or Manager, if any, in 

the financial year

The percentage increase in the 

median remuneration of employees 

in the financial year

The number of permanent 

employees on the rolls of 

company

The key parameters for any variable 
component of remuneration availed 
by the directors

Affirmation that the remuneration 

is as per the remuneration policy 

of the company

Annexure V
Details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

40
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Details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:   Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Tavernier Resources Limited

Place: Mumbai

Date:  11/08/2023

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00297863
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Annexure VI

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED

Plot No- 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, 

Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind Estate, 

Govandi, Mumbai - 400043.

Sr.
No.

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Mrs. Rajkumari Sudhir Naheta

Mr. Sudhir Milapchand Naheta 

Mrs. Aditi Aditya Dugar

Mr. Aditya Shashikant Mhatre

Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Shailesh Mavji Vora

00172026

00297863

02300703

08279385

08600211

08711802

30/10/2008

30/10/2008

30/10/2008

12/02/2019

14/11/2019

28/02/2020

Place: Thane
Date: 11/08/2023

For Sonal Kothari & Associates

Sonal Shah
Proprietor

ACS: 24216
COP No.: 8769

UDIN: A024216E000765561
Peer Review Certificate no. 2069/2022

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED having CIN L51909MH1994PLC193901 and having registered office at Plot 

No- 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, Near Mahesh Pharma, Ancillary Ind Estate, Govandi Mumbai - 400043. 

(hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
stFinancial Year ending on 31  March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 

Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tavernier Resources Limited (the “company”) 
stwhich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss account, Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
staccepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31  March 2023, and profit and other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. 

Other Information

5. The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 

fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified in section 133 

of the of the Act as applicable. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities selection and application of appropriate accounting policies , making  

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal  financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records , relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from any material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 

assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Board of Directors is also 

responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain   professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors in the standalone financial 

statements. 
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● Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Director's use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

We also provide with audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms 

of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order, to the extent applicable.  

  10.   As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that: 

    (i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 (ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as 

appears from our examination of those books;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act.

(iii) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are 
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in agreement with the books of account;

(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 

this report comply with the Accounting Standards specified under of section 133of the said Act read 

with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

(v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March 2023 and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2023 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(vi) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”

(vii) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the 

Companies( Audit and Auditors Rules ) 2014 , in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and 

according to the explanations given to us  :

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which could impact its financial position.

b) The Company, wherever necessary has made provisions in its financial statements, as required under 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses.

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts if any required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses.

     For, 

     Rajeev & Rajesh 

     (Chartered Accountants)

     FRN: - 120382W

     Rajesh Pandey

     (Partner)

     M. No.103969
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' report to the members of Tavernier Resources Ltd.

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on 
stthe standalone financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2023, we report the following:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

 s ituation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

      (b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has formulated a regular 

 program of verification by which all Property, Plant and Equipment of the company shall be verified in a 

 phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature

 o f its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies were noticed on verification

 c onducted during the year as compared with the book records.

 (c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where the

  Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). 

  Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

 records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

 Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

 records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding

  any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 

 thereunder.

(ii) (a)  As explained to us the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In 

 our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

    (b)� According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

 records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of 

  five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current

  assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

 Company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

  records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security and has not granted 

  any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties 

  covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 

  3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

 records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as

  specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the 

 investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been 

 complied with.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the 

 public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed

  the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by it. 

  Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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(vii)  (a)  The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value

     added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed into 

 GST.

�  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

 records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of

  undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or other 

 statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

�  

  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

  records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, 

 Provident Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of

  more than six months from the date they became payable.

  (b)  A� ccording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

  records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,

  Income-Tax or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on

  account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

 records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 

 unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

 as income during the year.

(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the  

  records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the

  year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

  records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

  institution or government or government authority.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

  Company has not obtained any term loans during the year.

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance

  sheet of the Company, we report that no funds were raised on a short-term basis accordingly, clause 

 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

 standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds 

  from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under the 

 Act.

 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 

 that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary

 (as defined under the Act).

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

  debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

  (b)� According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the  
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  records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

  shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xi) (a)  Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 

 explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 

  during the course of the audit.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 

 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the 

  Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

 (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 

 Company during the year.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 

  Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with 

 related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details 

 of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

 applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)  In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company have an 

  Internal Audit system.

     (b)� the Company have an internal audit system and the report of the internal auditors for the period under 

 the audit were considered by the statutory auditor.

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

 entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and 

 hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

  1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

 (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

  Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies 

  (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not 

 applicable.

(xvii)  The Company has incurred not incurred any cash loss during the financial year and preceding financial 

 year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the

  Order is not applicable.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing

  and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 

 information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors

  and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

 nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on

  the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

 balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,

  however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that  

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



49

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

  our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 

  nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 

 will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company. 

  Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable

      For, 
      Rajeev & Rajesh 
      (Chartered Accountants)
 FRN: - 120382W

      Rajesh Pandey
     (Partner)
      M. No.103969
     

th      Date: 26  May 2023
      Place: Mumbai

 UDIN:- 23103969BGPPKT2666 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of subsection 3 of Section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED 
st(Company) as at 31  March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of Standalone Financial Statements of the 

Company as on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 

 The Board of Directors of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the respective internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (The 

Guidance Note). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

financial controls that are operating effectively for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to the respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the act . 

Auditors' Responsibility 

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our Audit. We conducted the audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 

143 (10) of the Act and the Guidance note, to the extent applicable to an Audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the Audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain Audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our Audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

efficiency and effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgement including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that ,in reasonable detail ,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of the 

company ;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ;and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition , use or 

disposition of the Company's assets that could have material effect on the financial statements .

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatement due to error or fraud may 

occur and not be detected. Also, projections of evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk, that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 

may deteriorate.

Opinion 

 In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the company has in all 

material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
stfinancial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31  March, 2023 based on the internal 

financial control reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

For, 

Rajeev & Rajesh 

(Chartered Accountants)

FRN: - 120382W

Rajesh Pandey

(Partner)

M. No.103969

thDate: 26  May 2023

Place: Mumbai

UDIN:- 23103969BGPPKT2666

51

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

I. ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets     

     (a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets    

     (b) Other Intangible Assets     

     (c) Financial Assets          

          (i) Investments          

          (ii) Loans     

     (d)  Deferred tax assets (net)     

     (e)  Income Tax Assets (net)     

     (f)  Other  non-current assets 

Total non current assets

(2) Current Assets    

     (a) Inventories    

     (b) Financial Assets           

          (i) Cash and cash equivalents           

     (c) Other current assets 

Total current assets

Total Assets

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) Equity  

     (a) Equity Share capital 

     (b) Other  Equity 

Total equity

LIABILITIES 

(2) Non current liabilities 

     (a) Financial Liabilities           

          (i)  Borrowings 

     (b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  

Total non current liabilities

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

6

(3) Current liabilities 

     (a) Financial Liabilities           

          (i)  Borrowings           

          (ii) Trade  payables           

          (iii) Other  financial liabilities 

     (b) Current Tax Liabilities  (Net) 

15

16

17

18

19     (c) Other current liabilities 

     (d) Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total Current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2023

 See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date                                             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tavernier Resources LimitedFor Rajeev & Rajesh                                                          

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120382W

CA Rajesh Pandey
(Partner)

Mr. Sudhir Naheta
DIN: 00297863 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Rajkumari Naheta
DIN: 00172026
(Director)

Mr. Krishna Sawant 
PAN: AKHPS5544E  
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mrs. Priyanka chauhan
PAN: AIUPC2350D  
(Company Secretary)

Membership No. 103969

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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0.89

                                 -   

                        -   

                        800.00 

1.62

30.98

15.34

848.82

                        -   

37.66

8.41

46.07

                894.89

                 597.90 

                  (46.63)

551.27

                 310.78

                        -   

310.78

                        -   

2.48

27.70

                        -   

2.66

                        -   

32.84

343.62

894.89

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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20

                     1.12 

                                 -   

                        -   

                        800.00 

1.88

27.84

13.89

844.73

                        -   

27.19

8.11

                  35.30

                880.03

                 597.90 

                  (34.86)

                563.04

                 282.81

                        -   

282.81

                        -   

4.30

27.97

                        -   

1.91

                        -   

34.18

316.98

880.03



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
I. Revenue from Operations (Gross)

II. Other income

III. Total Income (I+II)

IV. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods,  
Stock-in -Trade  and work- in-progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other  expenses

Total Expenses (IV)

V. Profit/(loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV)

VI. Exceptional Items

VII. Profit/(loss) before Tax (V-VI)

VIII. Tax expense:
1. Current Tax
2. Tax expense of earlier years
3. Deferred Tax

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII)

X. Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinued operations

XI. Tax expense of discontinued operations

XII. Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued operations after tax (X-XI)

XIII. Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX+XII)

XIV. Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

XV. Total comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV)

XVI. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)
1. Basic
2. Diluted

Notes March 31, 2023

20

21

22
23

24
25

2 & 3
26

As per our report of even date                                             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Rajeev & Rajesh                                                          Tavernier Resources Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120382W
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March 31, 2022

CA Rajesh Pandey
(Partner)
Membership No. 103969

Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 26, 2023

337.19

3.28

340.46

296.58
                             -   

8.70
30.79

0.24
15.66

351.97

(11.51)

                             -   

(11.51)

                             -   
                             -   

                          0.26

(11.77)

                             -   

                             -   

                             -   

(11.77)

                             -   
                             -   
                             -   
                             -   
                             -   

(11.77)

(0.20)
(0.20)
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Mr. Sudhir Naheta
DIN: 00297863 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Rajkumari Naheta
DIN: 00172026
(Director)

Mr. Krishna Sawant 
PAN: AKHPS5544E
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mrs. Priyanka chauhan
PAN: AIUPC2350D
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023

446.85

2.43

449.28

376.16
                             -   

6.52
31.08

0.25
24.03

                     438.04

                     11.24

                             -   

                     11.24

                             -   
                             -   

                          0.31

                     10.93

                             -   

                             -   

                             -   

                     10.93

                             -   
                             -   
                             -   
                             -   
                             -   

                     10.93

                        0.18
                        0.18



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023

Particulars  For the year ended  
31st March 2023

 For the year ended
31st March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax 
Adjustment for:
                    Depreciation / (adjustments)
                    Interest earned on Fixed Deposits
                    Interest received on loan given
                    Profit on Sale of Assets
                    Finance Cost
                    Discount received
                    Doubtful Debt

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash Generated from Operations
Less:
Direct tax Paid

Net cash from operating activity (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITES:
Sale of Asset
Interest earned on Fixed Deposits
Purchase of Fixed assets
Interest on loan received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES:
Loan received 
Loan Repaid back

Net cash flow from investing Activities ( C )

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
(refer Note- 10)

A

B

C

(` in Lacs)
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As per our report of even date                                             
For Rajeev & Rajesh                                                          
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120382W

CA Rajesh Pandey
(Partner)
Membership No. 103969

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023

(11.51)

0.24
                                (1.64)

                                    -   
                                    -   

30.79
                                (0.06)

                                    -   

17.81

-
                                    -   

(0.29)
                                    -   

(1.82)
0.38

16.08

(2.99)

13.09

                             -   
0.19

                                    -   
                                    -   

0.19

                                -
                              (2.82)

                               (2.82)

10.47

27.19

37.66
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11.24

0.25
                                (1.53)

                                    -   
                                    -   

31.08
                                (0.14)

                                    -   

                         40.90

                                2.55
                                    -   

                                4.42
                                    -   

1.52
                                 2.50
                             51.89

                                    -   

                             51.89

                             -   
                                 0.20 

                                    -   
                                    -   

                                 0.20

                                -
                              (35.57)

                               (35.57)

                               16.52

10.67

                               27.19

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tavernier Resources Limited

Mr. Sudhir Naheta
DIN: 00297863 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Rajkumari Naheta
DIN: 00172026
(Director)

Mr. Krishna Sawant 
PAN: AKHPS5544E  
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mrs. Priyanka chauhan
PAN: AIUPC2350D  
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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CIN - L51909MH1994PLC193901

Company Background

Tavernier Resources Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 'Company') is a public limited company (listed on Bombay 

Stock Exchange) incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The company is engaged in the business of  engaged 

into dealing & trading of Gems & Jewellery in Domestic market as well as overseas mainly into Exports of Cut & 

Polished Diamonds. The company is also engaged in trading of shares and Securities and into real estate

Note 1 : Significant accounting policies

 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 

 statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 

 stated.

1 Basis of preparation and presentation

 (i)  Statement of compliance with Ind AS

 The company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

 Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting

 Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of sections 133.  In addition, the 

 guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also

 applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. The 

 financials for the year ended March 31, 2018 of the company were the first financial statements prepared in 

 compliance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016. 

 (ii)  Basis of accounting

 The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for 

 - certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS.

 (iii) Use of Estimates

 The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will 

 seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the accounting 

 policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a high degree of judgement or complexity,

 and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to

 be different those originally assessed.

 (iv) Critical estimates and judgements

 The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

  -  Estimation of current tax expense and payable

 - Recognition of revenue

 Ind AS 101 treats the information received after the date of transition to Ind AS as non-adjusting events. The

 entity shall not reflect that new information in its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet (unless the estimates need 

 adjustment for any differences in accounting policies or there is objective evidence that the estimates were in 

 error).
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2 Summary of significant Accounting Policies

a Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

 All items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost (i.e. cost of acquisition or 

 construction) less accumulated depreciation/accumulated impairment.  Such cost includes purchase price, 

 including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing

 the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 

 included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

 Transition to Ind AS

 Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant 

 and equipment and intangible assets as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition 

 to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition 

 after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities.

 Hence, on transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its

 property, plant and equipment and intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the

 previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and 

 intangible assets.

 Depreciation and Amortisation:

 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets is provided using the Straight Line

 Method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss

 as per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Impairment

 At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in

 the carrying amount of the Company’s assets. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

 estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

 recoverable amount.

 An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment

 loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any

 such indication exists the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying amount of the fixed asset is

 increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does

 not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 

 for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for

 the year.

 After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge for

 the fixed asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual

 value (if any), on Straight Line basis over its remaining useful life.

b Revenue Recognition

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the

 buyer. The amount recognised as sale is exclusive of sales tax/GST/VAT and is net of returns.
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 Income is accounted for on accrual basis.

c Inventory 

 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

 costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

d Investments and other financial assets

 (i) Classification

  The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

  - those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 

  through Profit or loss), and

  - those measured at amortised cost.

  The classification depends on the company’s business model for managing the financial assets and

  the contractual terms of the cash flows.

  For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 

  comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model

  in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether

  the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the 

  equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 (ii) Measurement

  At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 

  financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to

  the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through

  profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

  Debt instruments

  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for

  managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 

  categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:

  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

  represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on

  a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging 

  relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest 

  income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate 

  method.

  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of

  contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent 

  solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive

  income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the 

  recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses 

  which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative 
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  gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in

  other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using 

  the effective interest rate method.

  Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI 

  are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 

  subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is

  recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other 

  gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included

  in other income.

  Equity instruments

  A company can subsequently measure all equity investments at fair value through Profit or Loss or 

  through Other Comprehensive Income. As the company's one of the object is to trade in shares and 

  securities, the company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit 

  and loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the

  company’s right to receive payments is established.

  Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other

  gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss.

  Security deposits

  Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on

  completion of the lease term) are recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial

  assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company fair values these 

  security deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the 

  security deposit will be recognised as prepaid rent. Prepaid rent is recognised as an expense over 

  the period of lease with corresponding recognition of interest income on the outstanding amount.

 (iii) Impairment of financial assets

  The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its

  assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied

  depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

 (iv) Derecognition of financial assets

  A financial asset is derecognised only when:

  - The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

  - retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a 

  contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

  Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred 

  substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial 

  asset is derecognised. Where the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 

  ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

e Transactions in Foreign Currency

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the 

 dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
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 transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

 year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement 

 of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the 

 statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

f Trade receivables

 Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining 

 whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the 

 counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be

 taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

g Income tax

 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income

 based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction (in accordance with  the Income Tax Act, 1961) 

 adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused

 tax losses.

 The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using 

 the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and 

 unabsorbed depreciation (as per taxation laws) only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 

 available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

 Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 

 liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

 Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised

 in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 

 comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

 The Company has thus disclosed the Income Tax Assets/ Liabilities on a net basis as the same is settled 

 within the same tax jurisdiction, which is in line with Ind AS 12.

h Provision and Contingencies

 The Company creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past event that 

 probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

 may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present 

 obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

I Earnings Per Share

 (i) Basic earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

 -  the profit attributable to owners of the company

 -  by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
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 elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

 (ii) Diluted earnings per share

 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take

 into account:

 -  the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 

 shares, and

 -  the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

 conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

j Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing cost includes interest costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings

 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

 production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and 

 prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial 

 period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

 qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

k Cash and Cash Equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 

 hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 

 maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject

 to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings

 in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

l Segment reporting.

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

 operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as CODM 

 which also consists of key managerial personnel of the Company. Refer note 29 for segment information.

m Leases

 As a lessee:

 Leases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets where the company, as lessee, has

 substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are 

 capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the 

 minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in 

 borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability 

 and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a 

 constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the company

 as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 

 received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease 

 unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 

 lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
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n Trade and other payables

 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of 

 financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment

 is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

o Borrowings

 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 

 subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 

 and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective

 interest method.

 Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,

 cancelled or expired.

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer

 settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material

 provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the

 liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current,

 if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue,

 not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

p Rounding off amounts

 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest lakhs as per the

 requirement of schedule III unless otherwise stated.
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Note 2 : Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross BlockParticulars

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

Additions/
Deductions/

Written 
off

Accumulated Depreciaton

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

During 
the 

period

Relating 
to 

Disposals / 
Adjustments

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

Net Block

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

Furniture & Fixture 

Computer

Printer

Motor Car

Plant & Machinery

Office Equipment

TOTAL

                1.08 

                0.31 

                0.07 

              35.00

                0.61 

                0.75 

              37.82

Note 3 : Other Intangible Assets

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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–

–

–

–

–

–

–

                1.08 

                0.31 

                0.07 

              35.00 

                0.61 

                0.75 

              37.82

            0.44

            0.31

            0.07 

           35.00

            0.39

            0.49

          36.70

            0.10 

            -

               -   

            -

            0.05 

            0.09

            0.24

 –

–

–

-

–

–

–

            0.53

            0.31

            0.07 

           35.00

            0.45

            0.57

           36.93

            0.54

            0.00

               -   

           0.00

            0.16

            0.18

          0.89

            0.64

             0.00

                -   

           0.00

             0.22

             0.26

           1.12

Gross BlockParticulars

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

Additions/
Deductions/

Written 
off

Accumulated Depreciaton

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

During 
the 

period

Relating 
to 

Disposals / 
Adjustments

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

Net Block

As at 
31st 

March 
2023

As at 
31st 

March 
2022

Computer Software

Domain

TOTAL

               0.71

0.10

                              0.82

               –

–

–

               0.71

0.10

                              0.82

               0.71

0.10

                              0.82

               –

–

–

               –

–

–

               0.71

0.10

                              0.82

               –

–

–

               –

–

–
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 : Investments - Non Current

Investments in Equity instruments (Quoted)

Total Investments

31-Mar-2022

-

-

Note 5 : Loans - Non Current

Loan to Mega Township LLP

Total Loans

Note 6: Deferred tax assets / (liability) (Net)

Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences 

attributable to:

Depreciation on fixed asset

Revaluation of Rent Deposits

Total

Deferred tax liability

Set off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set 

off provisions

The balance comprises temporary differences 

attributable to:

Borrowings and Loans taken

Loans given

Revaluation of Investments

Total

Deferred tax assets / (liability) (Net)

Note 7: Income Tax Assets (net)

Income Tax advances (net off provision for tax)

Income Tax Receivable

MAT credit entitlement

Total Income Tax Assets

CIN - L51909MH1994PLC193901

31-Mar-2023

-

-

31-Mar-2023

800.00

800.00

31-Mar-2023

1.62

--

1.62

                    -                       

-   

                    

-   
                 

1.62

31-Mar-2023

0.91

12.81

17.25

30.98
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31-Mar-2022

800.00

800.00

31-Mar-2022

1.88

-

1.88

                    -                       

-   

                    

-   
                 

1.88

31-Mar-2022

9.31

2.86

15.68

27.84

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



Note 10: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand 

Balance with Banks

         -  In Fixed Deposit Account         

         -  In Current Account

Total  Cash and Cash Equivalents (free balances)

Embarked Balances with Banks         

-  In Dividend Account         

-  In Gratuity Account

Total Embarked Balances with Banks

Total of Cash and cash equivalents

Note 11: Other Current Assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received

Prepaid Expenses

Debtors

Total  Other Current Assets

Note 12: Share Capital

Authorised:

70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total Authorised Share Capital

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Note 9: Inventories

Finished Goods

Total  Inventories

31-Mar-2023

                 0.32

                 

8.60          

28.73 

37.66

-                       

-                       

-

37.66

31-Mar-2023

8.49

–

(0.08)

8.41

31-Mar-2023

              700.00 

700.00 

31-Mar-2023

–

–

Note 8: Other non-current assets

a) Deposits 

b) Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits

c) Interest Receivable from Mega Township LLP

Total Other  non-current assets

31-Mar-2023

                 -               

15.34  

–        

15.34

31-Mar-2022

                 0.47

                 

8.57          

18.14  

27.19

-                       

-                       

-

                 27.19

31-Mar-2022

31-Mar-2022

              700.00 

700.00 

31-Mar-2022

–

–

31-Mar-2022

                 -               

13.89    

–        

13.89
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59,91,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Issued and Subscribed Capital : –

599.19

599.19Total Issued and Subscribed Share Capital

59,79,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Paid Up Capital : 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

597.90 597.90

597.90 597.90Total Paid Up Capital

8.11

0.01

–

8.11

–

599.19

599.19



A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the 

beginning and at the end of the reporting period

At the beginning of the period

Issued during the period

Outstanding at the end of the period

31-Mar-2022

59.79

59.79

B. Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company*

31-Mar-2022

Number of 
equity share

% of holding
Name of shareholder

Directors:

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Rajkumari Naheta

* As per the records of the Company, 

including its register of members

       33,15,916        

10,64,900 

55.46%

17.81%
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
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31-Mar-2023

59.79

59.79

31-Mar-2023

Number of 
equity share

% of holding

       33,15,916        

10,64,900 

55.46%

17.81%

Note 13: Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Capital Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Additions

s

31-Mar-2022

0.35

0.35

General Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Additions

a

9.91

9.91

Retained Earnings

AS Per Last Balance Sheet

ADD : Profit for the year

ADD : Ind AS Transition Adjustments

Closing Balance of Retained earnings

Closing Balance of Other Equity

(56.05)  

10.93

-                

(45.12)

(34.86)

31-Mar-2023

0.35

0.35

9.91

9.91

(45.12)

(11.77)

-                

(56.88)

(46.63)

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

C. Promoter holding of equity shares in the Company*

31-Mar-2022

Number of 
equity share

% of holding
Name of shareholder

Directors:

Sudhir Milapchand Naheta

Rajkumari Naheta

* As per the records of the Company, 

including its register of members

       33,15,916        

10,64,900 

55.46%

17.81%

31-Mar-2023

Number of 
equity share

% of holding

       33,15,916        

10,64,900 

55.46%

17.81%



Note 14: Borrowings - Non Current:
Unsecured Loans :
From Directors
From Corporates
Total Unsecured Loans

Total Borrowings - Non Current

31-Mar-2022

282.81

31-Mar-2023

310.78
–

310.78

310.78

282.81
–

282.81

Note 16:  Trade Payables

a) For Materials

b) For Expenses

c) For Fixed Assets

Total of Trade Payables

31-Mar-2022

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

CIN - L51909MH1994PLC193901

31-Mar-2023

-

1.12

1.37

2.48

Note 15: Borrowings - Current:
Unsecured Loans :
From Corporates

  - 

Total Borrowings - Current

31-Mar-2022

-

-

31-Mar-2023

-                

-

67

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

TAVERNIER RESOURCES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Ageing schedule of Trade Payable

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Undisputed dues - MSME

Undisputed dues - Others

Disputed dues - MSME

Disputed dues - Others

Less than Years Years 3 Years Total

–

1.12

–

–

1.12

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

1.37

1.37

–

1.12

–

1.37

2.47

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Undisputed dues - MSME

Undisputed dues - Others

Disputed dues - MSME

Disputed dues - Others

Less than
1 Year

Total

–

3.52

–

–

3.52

–

–

–

–

–

–

0.78

0.78

–

3.52

–

0.78

4.30

1 - 2
Years

2 - 3
Years

More than
3 Year

3.00

(0.07)

1.37

4.30

–

–

–

–

–

–

–



Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
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Note 20: Revenue from Operations

Sale of Diamonds / Pearls

Other operating income

Profit/ Loss in Shares & Derivatives Transactions

Dividend

Total Revenue from Operations

Note 21: Other Income

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Income

Total Other Income

31-Mar-2023

337.19

-

337.19

31-Mar-2023

1.64

1.64

3.28

31-Mar-2022

446.85

-

446.85

31-Mar-2022

1.53

0.90

2.43

Note 17: Other Financial Liabilities:

Interest payable

Car Loan (Repayable in the  Next 12 months)

Total  Other Financial Liabilities

31-Mar-2022

Note 18: Current Tax Liabilities

Provision for Tax (Net off Advance Tax - Nil)

Total Other Current Liabilities

31-Mar-2023

-

-

Note 19: Other Current Liabilities

a) Statutory dues payable

b) Provision for Expenses

Total Other Current Liabilities

31-Mar-2023

0.93

1.73

2.66

31-Mar-2023

27.70

-

27.70

31-Mar-2022

-

-

31-Mar-2022

27.97

-

27.97

Note 24: Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries, bonus, allowances

Staff Welfare Expenses

Total Employee Benefit Expenses

31-Mar-2023

8.55

0.15

8.70

Note 23: (Increase)/decrease in stock of Finished goods

Opening Stock

Finished Goods

Closing Stock

Finished Goods

Total (Increase) / decrease in stock of Finished goods

31-Mar-2023

–

–

–

Note 22: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Purchases of Diamond / Pearls

Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

31-Mar-2023

                           296.58

296.58

31-Mar-2022

6.42

0.10

6.52

31-Mar-2022

–

–

–

31-Mar-2022

376.16      

376.16

1.13

0.78

1.91
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Note 25: Finance Cost

Interest on loan

Interest on car loan

Finance costs expensed in profit or loss

Note 26: Other Expenses

Office Rent

Payment to Auditors

Electricity Charges

Listing Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

Doubtful Debt

Legal and Professional Charges

Total Other Expenses

Note 26.1: Payment to Auditors

Payment to Auditors

(a) Auditor:

     Statutory Audit Fees

(b) Taxation matters

(c) Other services

Total Payments to Auditors

31-Mar-2023

30.79

-                       

30.79

31-Mar-2023

–

3.50

–

3.55                 

4.44

4.18

15.66

31-Mar-2023

3.50

-                          

-                      

3.50

31-Mar-2022

31.08

-                       

31.08

31-Mar-2022

31-Mar-2022

2.50

-                          

-                      

2.50

Note 27: Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

Particulars

Claims against the Company not acknowledged 

as debts for tax matters

For Service Tax matter

Total Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

31-Mar-2022

-

-

-

31-Mar-2023

-

-

-

Fixed Deposit of Rs. 7,00,000 is pledged in favour of "President of India - Development Commissioner Indore SEZ" on 
behalf of M/s. C.T. Cotton Yarn Limited.The aforesaid Fixed Deposit is duly matured but is yet to be released by the 
said Authority. Balance of FDR as stated in the Balance sheet is subject to confirmation from UCO Bank

Note 28: Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
As required by section 22 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 there is no amount 
overdue to nay Micro, Small & medium Enterprises and hence no disclosure required.

Note 29: Others 
Company had given loan to Mega Township LLP as per the agreement dated 4th August 2015 of Rs. 800 lakhs, on 
which interest accrued till 31st March 2019 was Rs. 329.94 lakhs. The company has received Original Title document 
as security from Mega Township LLP. However, Mega Township LLP has not repaid the ICD amount along with interest 
accrued in spite of repetitive reminder.

As per para 5.4.4 of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instrument, titled write- off, an entity shall directly reduce the gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset when the entity has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its 
entirety or a portion thereof. Therefore, the management of the company have come to a conclusion and written off 
interest accrued portion which is Rs. 329.94 lakhs on 31st March 2020. The above decision is taken as to give the true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company.

–

2.50

–

3.55                 

12.71

--

5.26

24.03
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Note 30: Earnings Per Share

Particulars

a) Basic earnings per share in rupees (face value - Rs. 10 per share)

b) Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

c) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

31-Mar-2022

P

0.18

10.93

59.79

31-Mar-2023

P

(0.20)

(11.77)

59.79

Note 31 : Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the company has been identified as CODM & consists of key 
managerial personnel of the company. 

For the F.Y. 2022-23, the company has just one reportable segment (i.e. Precious Stones) thus segment reporting is 
not applicable to the company and accordingly not been provided.
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Note 32 : List of Related Parties and Transactions during the year and balances at the end 

                of the year as per IND AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

Key Management Personnel

Details of Transactions are as Follows :

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

I Loan taken by Company
 Key Management Personnel

(i) Mr. Sudhir M.Naheta
(ii)     Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

II Loan repaid by Company
 Key Management Personnel

(i) Mr. Sudhir M.Naheta
(ii) Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

III Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company by
 Key Management Personnel

 Mr. Sudhir M.Naheta 

IV Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company, 
 reimbursed to Key Management Personnel

 Mr. Sudhir M.Naheta

(i)      Mr. Sudhir M.Naheta

(ii)     Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

(iii)    Mrs. Aditi A. Dugar

(iv)    Mr. Mayur Jamnadas Vora

Mr. Aditya Mhatre (v)     

Mr. Shailesh Vora(vi)    

Ms. Priyanka Chauhan - Company Secretary (vii)   

(viii)  Mr. Krishna Sawant - Chief Finance Officer

(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2023

18.50
–   

II

18.50
–

I

–

–

–
–

II

30.00
–

I

–

–

43.00
–

–
27.57

I

–

–



Particulars

VIII Fair Valuation of Loans from Directors - Ind AS
 Key Management Personnel

(i) Mr. Sudhir M. Naheta
(ii) aMrs. Rajkumari S. Nahet

IX Remuneration Paid to Key Management Personnel
 Short Term Employee Benefits

(i) Mr. Prasad S. Parkar
(ii) Mrs. Priyanka Chauhan
(iii) Mrs. Reena Gavle
(iv)   Mr. Krishna Sawant  

X Outstanding balances as at
 Payable by Company to
 Loans and Advances
 Key Management Personnel

(i) Mr. Sudhir M. Naheta
(ii) aMrs. Rajkumari S. Nahet
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March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021March 31, 2023

–
–   

II

–
0.54

–
4.62

338.48
(0.00)

–
–   

II

–
0.57
1.14
3.47

310.78
(0.00)

–
–

II

5.40
1.11
0.45
1.17

312.81
(0.00)

As per our report of even date                                             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tavernier Resources LimitedFor Rajeev & Rajesh                                                          

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120382W

CA Rajesh Pandey
(Partner)
Membership No. 103969

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 26, 2023
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V Deposit received from
 Key Management Personnel

 Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

VI Deposit refunded to
 Key Management Personnel

   Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

VII Interest Expense - Ind AS 
 Key Management Personnel

(i) Mr. Sudhir M. Naheta
(ii) Mrs. Rajkumari S. Naheta

–

–
  

V

27.70
–

–

–
  

V

27.97
–

–

–
  

V

25.55
062

Mr. Sudhir Naheta
DIN: 00297863 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Rajkumari Naheta
DIN: 00172026 
(Director)

Mr. Krishna Sawant 
PAN: AKHPS5544E  
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mrs. Priyanka Chauhan
PAN: AIUPC2350D  
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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Note 33 : Financial Ratios

The ratios as per the latest amendment to schedule III are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

I Current Ratio
(Total current assets / Current Liabilities)

II Debt-Equity Ratio
(Net Debt / Average Equity)
[Net Debt: Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings - 
Cash & Cash equivalents]
[Average Equity: Equity Share Capital + Other Equity]

III Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(EBIT/(Net finance charges + Interest income)
[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net 
finance charges]
[Net finance charges: Finance costs - Interest income]

IV Return on Equity Ratio
(Profit after tax (PAT)/Average Equity)
[Average Equity: Equity Share Capital + Other Equity]

V Inventory Turnover Ratio
(Average Inventory / Sale of Product in Days)

VI Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio
(Average Trade Receivables / Turnover in Days)
[Turnover: Revenue from Operations]

VII Trade Payables Turnover Ratio
(Average Trade Payables / Expenses)
[Expenses: Total Expenses - Finance Cost - Depreciation 
and Amortisation Expense – Other expenses with respect 
to Rates & Taxes, Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances]

VIII Net Capital Turnover Ratio
(Average Working Capital / Turnover)
[Working capital: Current assets - Current liabilities]
[Turnover: Revenue from Operations]

IX Net Profit Ratio
(Net Profit after Tax / Turnover)
[Turnover: Revenue from Operations]

X Return on Capital Employed
(EBIT/Average capital employed)
[EBIT: Profit before taxes +/(-) Exceptional items + Net 
finance charges]
[Net finance charges: Finance costs - Interest income]
[Capital Employed: Equity share capital + Other equity + 
Non current borrowings + Current borrowings + Deferred 
tax liabilities]

XI Return on Investment
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
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                 1.40

                 
0.50 

               

  0.61 

                 

(0.02) 

                     

-   

                     -   

                 
0.01 

                 

0.04 

                 

(0.03) 

                 0.02 

                     

-   

                 1.03 

                 
0.45 

               

  1.38 

                 

0.02 

                     

-   

                     -   

                 
0.01 

                 

0.00 

                 

0.02 

                 0.05 

                     

-   
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As per our report of even date                                             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tavernier Resources LimitedFor Rajeev & Rajesh                                                          

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120382W

CA Rajesh Pandey
(Partner)
Membership No. 103969

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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Variation in Coverage, turnover and other profitability ratios is primarily due to increase in turnover 
and profitability during the year ended March 31, 2022.
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Mr. Sudhir Naheta
DIN: 00297863 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Rajkumari Naheta
DIN: 00172026 
(Director)

Mr. Krishna Sawant 
PAN: AKHPS5544E  
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Mrs. Priyanka Chauhan
PAN: AIUPC2350D  
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023
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Plot No - 42 CTS No 1(PT), Village Deonar, Near Mahesh Pharma, 
Ancillary Ind Estate, Govandi Mumbai - 400043  |  Contact No: 88793 82912

Email: info@tavernier.com investors@tavernier.com
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